2008

Hyde Park City v. Jerald Rio Davis : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

1. Defendant/Appellant was charged in the Justice Court for Hyde Park City before a Justice court judge sitting in that court with some legal training but which justice was neither a law school graduate nor a member of any state or federal bar. The Defendant/Appellant, prior to trial in the Justice Court, filed Motions to Dismiss (See Appendix A) thereby challenging the constitutionality and sufficiency of the city ordinances under which Defendant/Appellant was charged and sentenced as well as the legislative enactments enabling the creation and operation of the Justice court system.

2. The Defendant/Appellant suffered an adverse ruling by the sitting Justice and was thereafter tried, convicted and sentenced by said Justice Court Judge (See Appendix B). Defendant/Appellant appealed the conviction and Sentence to the First District court for Cache County (See Appendix C) and particularly specifying therein that

an illegal sentence had been imposed in light of Utah Law in addition to the other matters addressed in the Motions presented at the Justice Court level.

3. The case was heard denovo in the District Court for Cache County and Defendant/Appellant suffered adverse rulings on all motions to dismiss filed therewith (See Appendix D), each filed anew in connection with the denovo proceeding (practically identical to those filed in the Justice Court). Each Motion addressed Constitutional issues and in fact challenged the constitutionality of one or more statutes or ordinances.

4. Defendant/Appellant was convicted by the District Court after a Bench Trial on the 19th day of September, 2007 and at that time Judgment and Sentence were orally imposed by the Trial Court. (See Transcript as Appendix E). The Minutes, Sentence, Judgment, Commitment and Notice was signed and filed by the Court on the 28th day of September, 2007 (See Appendix F). A Notice of Appeal was filed by the Defendant/Appellant on the 15th day of October, 2007 (See Appendix G). This Appeal is taken from a criminal judgment pursuant to the provisions of Rule 26 of the Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure and Utah Code Ann. § 77-18a-1, (1953 as Amended). Jurisdiction of this Court is established pursuant to provisions of Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-3(e), (1953 as Amended).

5. The clerk of the Trial Court refrained from transmitting the file to the Court of Appeals, which Appeal Defendant had filed on 15 October 2007, even after the

Designation of Record was filed on November 30, 2007 (See Appendix H). On the 16th day of January, 2008 the file was belatedly transmitted to the Utah Court of Appeals after two evidentiary hearings addressing a disputed contempt citation had transpired. The Trial Court, at each hearing, had granted Defendant/Appellant additional time to complete an ordered cleanup; the last review on the ordered clean up was scheduled for the 1st day of July, 2008 and was heard on that date, no further hearings are now scheduled.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

6. The Standard of Review on Appeal concerning the challenge to the Trial Court's interpretation as to the constitutionality of the questioned ordinance, the legality of the sentence, and the constitutionality of the Statutes creating Justice courts is as to the correctness of the trial courts ruling without deference to the trial Judges findings.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

- I. Are the Plaintiff/Appellee City's nuisance ordinances repugnant to and in conflict with the laws of the State of Utah and not in accord with the doctrine announced in ALLGOOD v. LARSON (Supra).**
- II Are the nuisance Ordinances of Plaintiff/ Appellee and the various Statutes of the State of Utah addressing nuisance constitutional or should said statutes be declared void-for-vagueness because the statutes do not adequately define what is a nuisance nor do they provide adequate guidelines for the enforcement of said statutes.**
- III. Is the penalty ordinance No. 10-359 of the Plaintiff/ Appellee enforceable on its face as imposed upon Defendant/ Appellant?**
- IV. The Statutory scheme for Justice Courts interferes with Judicial**

independence by providing monetary incentives to convict criminal defendants and by authorizing the administrative arm of municipal government to hire and fire judges and to control court operations.

V. Did the Trial Court both at the Justice Court level and at the District level abuse their respective discretions and exceed the Maximum sentence as allowed by State Law thereby denying Due Process as guaranteed by the Utah Constitution and by the United States Constitution.

VI. Did the District Court rule by its ruling appropriately dispose of the issues as to constitutionality of a statute or ordinance when it denied the Defendant/Appellant's motion to dismiss and the motion to quash the justice court conviction.

PRESERVATION OF ISSUES FOR APPEAL

7. The issues presented in the de novo prosecution were adequately preserved at the Justice Court level and subsequently in the District Court by Motion to Dismiss supported by a Memorandum of Points and Authorities dated 12th April, 2007 filed addressing the violation of the Defendant's right to due process of law, equal protection under the laws and right to uniform operation of the law, in that the Statute UCA 10-8-60 defining what constitutes a Nuisance is relegated to each city and town and violates the Doctrine of Separation of powers as mandated by Article VIII Section 4 of the Utah Constitution and other constitutional provisions and that the very existence of the Justice Court constitutes a violation of Article VIII Section 4 of the Utah Constitution and thereby may not presume jurisdiction to decide criminal cases or controversies and by Objection to the Order entered on Motion to Dismiss And To Quash Conviction as filed on the 21st August, 2007 (See Appendix J) and on the Objection to Oral Verdict,

Judgement and Sentence filed on the 9th October, 2007 (See Appendix K).

CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS
CASES CITED AND LEARNED WORKS AND OTHER AUTHORITIES CITED

United States Constitution, 14th Amendment

Utah Constitution Article I, Section 1

Utah Constitution Article I, Section 24

Utah Constitution Article V, Section 1

Utah Constitution Article VIII, Section 1

Utah Constitution Article VIII Section 4

Utah Constitution Article XI Section 5

Tennessee Constitution Article II, Section 2

Tennessee Constitution Article IV, Section 4

Tennessee Constitution Article VI, Section 1

Utah Code Annotated § 10-3-703

Utah Code Annotated § 10-8-6

Utah Code Annotated § 10-8-60

Utah Code Annotated § 10-8-84

Utah Code Annotated § 76-1-103 (1)

Utah Code Annotated § 76-1-104

Utah Code Annotated § 76-3-301

Utah Code Annotated § 76-10-801(1)

Utah Code Annotated § 76-10-801 (2)

Utah Code Annotated § 76-10-803

Utah Code Annotated § 77-18a-1 (1953 as Amended)

Utah Code Annotated § 78-2a-3(e)

Utah Code Annotated § 78-3-4(8)

Utah Code Annotated § 78-3-13.4

Utah Code Annotated § 78-3-14.5 (2)

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-101

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-101.5

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-104(1)

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-108

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-110

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-111

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-116 (1)

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-132 (1)

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-134 (2)

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-134 (5)

Utah Code Annotated § 78-5-134 (5)(d)

Utah Code Annotated § 78-38-9

Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 26

Utah Rules of Judicial Conduct Canon 2

Hyde Park City Ordinance 10-332

Hyde Park City Ordinance 10-300 through 10-343

Hyde Park City Penalty Ordinance No. 10-359

Allgood vs. Larson 545 P.2d 530, 531 (Utah 1976)

Bernat v. Allphin 2005 UT 1 ¶32 106 P.3d 707

Blankenship v. Minton Chevrolet, Inc., 266 S.Ed 902, 903 (W.V. 1979)

Blanton v. City of Las Vegas 489 U.S. 538, 542 (1989)

Bradley vs. Fisher 80 U.S. 335, 349 n. 16 (1871)

Calligy v. Mayor and Council of the City of Hoboken 665 A.2d 408, 409 (N.J. Super. 1995)

Cannon v. Neuberger 1 Utah 2d 396, 268 P.2d 425

Citizens Club v. Welling 27 P.3d 23, 26 (Utah 1933)

City of Columbus v. Molt 36 Ohio ST. 2d 94, 304 N.E.2d 245

Colautti v. Franklin 439 U.S. 379, 394-401, 58 L.Ed.2d 596, 99 S.Ct. 675 (1979)

Dahl v. Utah Oil Refining Co. 71 Utah 1, 262 P.269

Grayned v. City of Rockford 408 U.S. 104, 33 L.Ed.2d 222, 92 S.Ct. 2294 (1972)

Greenwood v. City of North Salt Lake 817 P.2d 816 (Utah 1991)

Hatch v. Hatch Co. 3 Utah 2d 295, 283 P.2d 217 (Utah 1955)

Helmkamp v. Clark Ready Mix Co. 214 N.W.2d 126, 129 (Iowa 1974)

Hoffman Estates v. Flipside, Hoffman Estates, Inc., 455 U.S. 489, 494, 71 L.Ed.2d 362, 102 S.Ct. 1186 (1982)

In Re Hammermaster 985 P.2d 924, 936 (Wash. 1999)

In Re Young 1999 UT 6 976 P.2d 581

Jones 550 P.2d at 210

Jones v. Logan City Corp. 19 Utah 2d 169, 428 P.2d 160 (1967)

Kolender v. Lawson 461 U.S. 352, 357, 75 L.Ed.2d 903, 909, 103 S.Ct. 1855 (1983)

Logan City v. Huber 786 P.2d 1372 (Ut App. 1990)

Marbury v. Madison 5 U.S. 137, 1 Cranch 137, 2 L.Ed, 60

Parkersburg Builders Material Co. v. Barrack 118 W.Va. 608, 191 S.E. 368, 110 A.L.R. 1461

Provo City v. Whatcott 200 UT, (Ut App. 1986)

Richfield City V. Walker 790 P.2d 87, 90-91 (Utah App. 1990)

Salt Lake City v. Kusse 97 Utah 113, 93 P.2d 671 (1938)

Salt Lake City v. Ohms 881 P.2d 844, 849 (Utah 1994)

Sims v. Tax Commission 841 P.2d 6 (Utah 1992)

Solar Salt Co. vs. Southern Pacific Transp. Co. 555 P.2d 286, 289 (Utah 1976)

State of Utah v. Hemmert No. 15725 (1978)

State v. Gallion 572 P.2d 683, 688 (Utah 1977)

State by and through the Town of South Carthage vs. Barrett 840 S.W. 2d 895 (Tenn. 1992)

Summers v. Thompson 764 S.W. 2d 182, 183 (Tenn. 1988)

Timpanogos Planning and Water Management Agency v. Central Utah Water Conservancy Dist.
690 P.2d 562, 564-565 (Utah 1984)

Tite v. State Tax Commission 57 P.2d 734, 737 (Utah 1963)

Turnbaugh v. Anderson 793 P.2d 939 (Utah App. 1990)

United States v. Reese 92 U.S. 214, 221, 25 L.Ed. 563 (1876)

Winters v. New York 333 U.S. 507, 515, 92 L.Ed 840, 68 S.Ct. 665 (1948)

Youngstown Sheet & Tube Co. v. Sawyer 343 U.S. 579, 594 (1952)

Institute for Law and Policy Planning, Salt Lake County Criminal Justice Assessment 6.11 (2004)

Sam Newton, Justice Court Appeal: The Good, the Bad, and the Unintended, 18 Utah Bar J. No. 1 at 25 (January/February 2005)

Blacks Law Dictionary 7th Edition, West Group 1999

NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

8. This action was originally filed in the Justice Court of Hyde Park City and was, after proceedings in that court, appealed to the District Court for Cache County. This Appeal is taken from a final Judgment and Sentence entered in the First District Court for Cache County, State of Utah on the 19 day of September, 2007 and signed by the District Judge on the 28 day of September, 2007 convicting Defendant of a purported violation of Hyde Park City Ordinance 10-332 thereby adjudging Defendant guilty of 1 Count of Maintaining a Nuisance, an infraction.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

9. Ira B. (Friday) Davis, the father of Defendant Jerald Rio Davis was a long time resident of Hyde Park City, owning lands located at 187 East 200 North in that city consisting of 1.07 acres upon which stood a home and shop which housed the business which was licensed pursuant to the laws of said municipality and operated as Ira B. Davis Body and Fender, apparently a de facto Proprietorship.

10. During the lifetime of Ira B. Davis, the minutes of the Hyde Park City Council (examined from 1970 to present), no discussion concerning said lands is noted other than one instance regarding placement of a "Trailer House" which had been moved onto the property, there was a brief discussion but no formal action was taken at that time and no further discussion regarding this topic or of any other issue was addressed until the end of 1979. (A mobile home is still situated on the property and is rented to tenants which tenants change from time to time.)

11. Hyde Park City purported to enact Chapter 10-300 through 10-343 which agglomeration of ordinances is hereinafter referred to as the "nuisance ordinance." This ordinance appears to have been enacted on the 10th day of January, 1979 and is said to have been revised or amended on the 1st day of February, 1979.

12. The "nuisance ordinance", as adopted by the Plaintiff City, differs significantly from the nuisance statutes which have been and are presently enacted by the Utah Legislature during all relevant times including the time coextensive with this litigation and at the time of the alleged violation.

13. On August 11, 1998 a letter from Mayor Mark E. Daines to Ira Davis advised that the City had received complaints about the "appearance of your property" (See Appendix L).

14. In a letter dated November 9, 1998 from Mayor Mark E. Daines, it is observed that,

"...We have noticed the removal of some vehicles and very much appreciate your willingness to comply with the ordinance and at the same time not jeopardize your repair business."

15. Ira Davis died on May 18, 2001 and his estate ultimately passed to his son, Rio Davis, the Defendant/Appellant who, having previously been employed in the business by his father, continued to operate the business under license issued upon application of Rio Davis (See Appendix M). No significant alterations to the general condition of the subject lands have been made since the demise of Ira Davis except as noted hereinbelow.

16. After taking possession of the property at 187 East 200 North, Hyde Park, Utah, Defendant/Appellant commenced a clean up, discarding and/or destroying items considered not to be relevant to the continued operation of the business, and has indeed removed a considerable amount of personal property from the East side of the tract, which portion was then fenced and now serves as an enclosure for horses, apparently a permitted use under applicable zoning ordinances. Personal property remains stored in the open area behind the shop which houses the Davis repair business as it is now operated. Likewise, a barn on the premises is employed as housing for animals as well as for storage of machinery and auto parts.

17. On March 21, 2003 Defendant/Appellant received a letter from Reed A. Elder, purporting to represent Hyde Park City (See Appendix N). The letter discusses a visit and alluded to goals which were to be accomplished by Defendant/Appellant in

order to bring the property into compliance with the existing City ordinances as follows:

"1. Removal of or storage in an onsite garage, ...all non-licensed vehicles and boats.

2. All miscellaneous materials that you [emphasis mine] have no useful purpose for and all debris must be removed from the property. This includes, but is not limited to automotive motor parts, brick and masonry materials, lumber or other wood items, metal barrels and all other items of furniture, machinery and building materials.

3. All material and machinery which you [emphasis mine] want to keep and store on the property must be stored inside a closed structure or within an additional fenced area inside the property which creates a visual barrier to the other properties surrounding your property. The materials to be used and the location of placement of such a fence would need to be approved by the City.

4. The property on which there is presently a trailer home located (northeast corner) must be separated from the balance of your property to establish its own lot and utilities. This will need to follow existing ordinances which the City will help you with.

5. This all must be accomplished within 120 days of this letter or the City may have to take actions to have the work done, which will result in a charge to you for the cost."

The letter goes on to request a signature from Defendant/Appellant which signature was never provided.

18. On or about the 3rd day of November, 2005 Defendant/Appellant was charged with the crime of "Maintaining a Nuisance" in violation of Hyde Park Revised Ordinance No. 10-332 with regard to the tract located at 187 East 200 North, Hyde Park, Utah and litigation ensued. (See Appendix P).

19. After denial of written Motions challenging the constitutionality of the court and of the ordinance a trial was had on the 28th day of June, 2006 in the Hyde Park City Court, whereupon the Defendant was found Guilty and was Sentenced on the 1st day of November, 2006 as follows: "Defendant is fined \$50.00 (fifty dollars) each day after

11/30/06 not in compliance with ordinance." (See paragraph 2 above.)

20. The Judgment of Conviction and sentence entered by the Justice court was Appealed to the First District Court in Cache County. After renewed Motions asserting constitutional grounds were filed and denied by the District court a trial was had on the 19th day of September, 2007 whereupon the Defendant was adjudged Guilty of an infraction and was Sentenced on the 28th day of September, 2007 as specified hereinabove. The sentence required that Defendant pay a \$50.00 fine and clean up the property to the satisfaction of city officials under pain of contempt.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

21. The Defendant/ Appellant is charged with violation of Hyde Park City Revised Ordinance 10-332 "Maintaining a Nuisance". The statute, as written, is repugnant to and in conflict with the laws of the State of Utah and not in accord with the doctrine announced in Allgood v. Larson 545 P.2d 530, 531 (Utah 1976)(See Appendix Q) and as such the nuisance statutes of both Hyde Park City/Appellee and the State of Utah are unconstitutional and should be declared void-for-vagueness because they do not adequately define what is a nuisance nor do they provide adequate guidelines for enforcement and each Ordinance should be struck down as unenforceable on its face and as it has been applied to this particular Defendant.

22. The Defendant/ Appellant contends that Part 10-331 of the Plaintiff/ Appellant's nuisance ordinance and U.C.A. § 76-10-801(1) defining nuisance and

U.C.A. § 76-10-803 defining a public nuisance are unconstitutionally vague in violation of Article I, § 7 of the Utah Constitution and the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

23. Ordinances, such as the Plaintiff/Appellee has adopted here, are regulated by the State laws and by the courts, the city cannot impose a greater sentence than that provided by state law. See *Allgood v. Larson* (supra). It is to be noted that 10-8-84, by its express terms, limits the grant of power to municipalities to pass ordinances, to those "not repugnant to law." It should be further noted that the penalty provisions in the city ordinance exceeds the mandates of 10-8-60 by pre-classifying the offense as a Class C Misdemeanor which defeats the "fine only" grant under the limitation on the grant of power regarding nuisance charges bestowed on the city by that statute.

24. The Utah legislature's scheme for establishing and operating justice courts violates the separation of powers doctrine's prohibition proscribing acts of one branch of government which interfere with performance of core functions by another branch. Judges must be free to exercise exclusive power to decide cases independently and without influence exerted by the executive and legislative branches. Under Utah's statutory scheme, municipal governments have been afforded broad authority to control and direct justice courts, including the power to whimsically appoint and dismiss judges. In addition, municipalities may and are directed to control justice court budgets, personnel, and resources. Because Utah law requires that municipalities must fund their

own justice courts, local governments will tend to establish local courts only if the courts are able to fund their own operations. In practice, some justice courts have become so profitable that they serve as a significant source of revenue upon which the municipalities they serve rely when planning their annual budgets. This legislative scheme presents enormous, if subtle, incentives for justice court judges to generate revenue by convicting and fining criminal defendants. These incentives and others interfere with the core judicial function of independently and fairly adjudicating criminal cases in violation of the separation of powers doctrine.

25. The sentence imposed by the Justice Court as well as by the District Court was clearly at odds with the powers extended to cities and towns (and importantly to the District Court as well) and was surely "repugnant to law." *Allgood vs. Larsen* (decided) see also *State vs. Hemmert* (supra) in the Supreme Court of the State of Utah No. 15725 (an unpublished opinion) Crockett, Hall and Ellet concurring.) If the singular and unlawful sentence imposed by the Justice Court and, to some extent, perpetuated by the District Court had it not found its basis in an unconstitutional ordinance, this Defendant would have been deprived of any power to seek an effective review of the draconian pronouncements that plagued this case as found its way through the lower Courts.

26. Defendant/Appellee filed a Motion and Memorandum of Points and Authorities In Support of a Motion To Dismiss in the District Court on or about the 12th day of April, 2007. A Motion to Quash the Justice Court conviction was also filed. Said

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