2008

# Hyde Park City v. Jerald Rio Davis : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

### **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

This Court lacks appellate jurisdiction because Defendant / Appellant Jerald Rio Davis (hereinafter “Mr. Davis” or “Davis”) has not appealed a final order from the District Court. The final judgment rule precludes a party from taking an appeal from any orders that are not final. Mr. Davis has continued to seek adjudication of his constitutional issues at the District Court level after filing his appeal. The District Court has only made an oral pronouncement denying Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss Pending Action and Motion to Quash. Such an oral pronouncement made by the District Court is not a final, appealable order. Moreover, the Hyde Park City nuisance ordinance is not unconstitutionally vague nor does it conflict with state statutes. Finally, Mr. Davis has failed to overcome the presumption of constitutionality regarding the Justice Court structure as well



as the nuisance ordinance and penalty. Based upon the foregoing, Mr. Davis' appeal must be denied.

### **LEGAL ARGUMENT**

#### **I. THIS COURT DOES NOT HAVE APPELLATE JURISDICTION OVER THIS CASE BECAUSE THE DISTRICT COURT HAS NOT ISSUED A FINAL ORDER ON APPELLANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS PENDING ACTION AND MOTION TO QUASH**

This Court lacks appellate jurisdiction because Mr. Davis has not appealed a final order from the District Court. Rather, Davis has appealed the District Court's oral pronouncement denying Appellant's Motion to Dismiss Pending Action and Motion to Quash (hereinafter "Motions" or "Appellant's Motions"). Under the well established final judgment rule, this Court only has appellate jurisdictions over appeals of final orders and those eligible for certification under Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 54(b). Mr. Davis' Appeal of the District Court's oral pronouncement does not satisfy the final judgment rule and must be dismissed.

The final judgment rule generally precludes a party from taking an appeal from any orders that are not final. Mackay Co. v. Okland Constr. 817 P.2d 323, 325 (Utah 1991). Furthermore, the law "is well settled in the state that the statements made by a trial judge are not the judgment of the case and it is only the signed judgment that prevails." State v. Gerrard, 584 P.2d 885, 887 (Utah 1978). Appeals from oral pronouncements of the court are not properly taken. Mackay Co., 817 P.2d at 325. When an order appealed from is not final and not certified or eligible for certification, it is not properly taken and the remedy is dismissal of the appeal Id citing Crossland v. Peck, 738 P.2d 631, 633 (Utah 1987).

“A judgment is final when it ends the controversy between the parties litigant.”

Kennedy v. New Era Industries, Inc., 600 P.2d 534, 536 (Utah 1979).

Mr. Davis has not appealed a final judgment, nor has the District Court’s oral pronouncement been certified under Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 54(b). Rather, contrary to the final judgment rule, Davis has appealed an oral pronouncement given by the District Court during a hearing held on July 30, 2007. (Record P. 141). In particular, Mr. Davis seeks to appeal the District Court’s oral denial of his motions. (See Appellant’s Brief, p. 53, ¶ 2).

While Mr. Davis may suggest that the September 28, 2007, trial judgment is the final order, this should not be the case because Davis’s constitutional claims were not ruled upon in the trial and said claims remained open for further adjudication based upon Davis’ own action. After the September 28, 2007 trial, Mr. Davis continued to seek adjudication of the constitutional issues at the District Court. As late as March 5, 2008, Mr. Davis filed a Notice to Submit for Decision on his earlier filed objection to the constitutional claims pronouncement. (Record P. 177). The District Court had earlier directed Hyde Park City to take further action in the case by drafting an order on Davis’ Motions. (See Appellant’s Brief, pp. 53-54, ¶103). The proposed order was objected to by Mr. Davis and thus never signed by the District Court. (See Appellant’s Brief, pp. 53-54, ¶ 103; See, also, Record P. 145). Davis’ objections to the proposed order were to have been addressed before a final order could be entered.

If the court had reconsidered its position with respect to the constitutional claims after receiving Mr. Davis' Notice to Submit for Ruling, it would have caused the Davis appeal to become moot. Clearly, Davis himself believed that the controversy regarding the constitutional issues was alive, and had not been resolved by the court because he was asking the court to readjust its oral ruling<sup>1</sup> before issuance of the signed order. (See Record P. 177). Again, this action was occurring nearly five months after filing the first notice of appeal.

Accordingly, because the District Court's oral pronouncement denying the constitutional claims was not reduced to a written order, and because the September 28, 2007 trial judgment on Davis' nuisance violation did not address or resolve the pending constitutional claims, there is not a final order in this case. Mr. Davis' appeal is not properly taken and must be dismissed.

**II. ALL ORDINANCES ARE PRESUMED CONSTITUTIONAL. THE DEFENDANTS HAVE FAILED TO PROVE THE CITY NUISANCE ORDINANCE IS OTHERWISE.**

Mr. Davis' next argument is based on a claim that the Hyde Park City nuisance ordinance is unconstitutional. It is essential to begin this response with two well-established, basic principles, courts follow when reviewing the constitutionality of a statute or ordinance. The first principle was restated in State v. Willis, 100 P.3d 1218, 1219; 2004 UT 93 (Utah 2004), where the Utah Supreme Court affirmed that, "[w]hen addressing a constitutional challenge to a statute, we

---

<sup>1</sup> "Trial courts have clear discretion to reconsider and change their position with respect to any orders or decision as long as no final judgment has been rendered." U.P.C., Inc. v. R.O.C. Gen., Inc., 990 P.2d 945, 945 (Utah Ct App. 1999)

*presume that the statute is valid and resolve any reasonable doubts in favor of constitutionality.* (Emphasis added.) The second principle is found restated in Midvale City Corp. v. Haltom, 73 P.3d 334, 339; 2003 UT 26, ¶18 (Utah 2003). In Midvale the Utah Supreme Court cautioned that courts should be “reluctant to entertain facial attacks because the statute [or ordinance] may be declared unconstitutional in all instances. The usual approach is to wait until a statute is applied in the suspected and offensive way.” Mr. Davis’ attack of the city nuisance ordinance is facial rather than in its application.

Normally in criminal cases the prosecution has the burden of proof. However, following Willis, Appellant in the immediate case has the burden of overcoming the presumption of constitutionality and proving that the ordinance is defective. This Court should avoid holding the city nuisance ordinance unconstitutional unless the Appellant’s claim is so clear that it overcomes the long standing presumption of constitutionality. Further, according to Midvale City, even if this Court has some question regarding the constitutionality of the ordinance, it should be reluctant to find it unconstitutional until after it can review the ordinance as against the facts of the immediate case. Hyde Park City submits that the ordinance is constitutional. Mr. Davis has no law to the contrary. He cannot overcome the presumption of validity here. The ordinance in question was drafted by a team associated with the Utah League of Cities and Towns and presented to all municipalities as part of a model ordinance more than 30 years ago. The same language found in the Hyde Park nuisance ordinance has been

enacted by most cities and towns across the state. And used in untold numbers of prosecutions. Despite all this, in a memorandum where Appellant cites to dozens of cases, that are largely off-point. *they do not refer to a single case that questions the constitutionality of this model nuisance ordinance.*

The ordinance is constitutional.

**III. THE CITY NUISANCE ORDINANCE IS NOT IN CONFLICT WITH STATE STATUTES. IN FACT, IT IS SPECIFICALLY AUTHORIZED BY STATE STATUTE.**

Mr. Davis' alleges, based upon a constitutional challenge, that the city nuisance ordinance impermeably conflicts with the state nuisance statute. This assertion is not grounded in fact or law. Utah law specifically authorizes cities, such as Hyde Park, to define nuisances and enforce the same.

U.C.A. § 10-8-84(1) provides that "The municipal legislative body may pass all ordinances and rules, and make all regulations, not repugnant to law, necessary for carrying into effect or discharging all powers and duties conferred by this chapter, and as are necessary and proper to provide for the safety and preserve the health, and promote the prosperity, improve the morals, peace and good order, comfort, and convenience of the city and its inhabitants, and for the protection of property in the city."

U.C.A. § 10-8-84(1), quoted above, is a general statement granting authority to cities to pass ordinances such as the city's nuisance ordinance. But directly on point, U.C.A. § 10-8-60 is a specific statutory grant of authority to cities to pass nuisance ordinances as they deem fit. U.C.A. § 10-8-60 provides

that cities “may declare what shall be a nuisance, and abate the same, and impose fines upon persons who may create, continue or suffer nuisances to exist.” The state statute does not say that cities may enforce the state’s definition of nuisance—it directly states that cities may declare what shall be a nuisance in their city.

It is true, as Davis alleges, but completely immaterial here, that Utah statutes, U.C.A. § 76-10-801, 802, 803 and 78-38-9, define a “nuisance” or “public nuisance” differently than the city defines a “nuisance.” *Because, as set forth above, U.C.A. § 10-8-60 provides express authority to cities to “declare what shall be a nuisance.”*

Davis cites to several Utah cases in an attempt to support his allegation that the City ordinance is in conflict with state law. All of these cases are completely off-point.

The first case cited by Davis is Allgood v. Larson, 545 P.2d 530 (Utah 1976). Contrary to Davis’ assertion, Allgood stands for the proposition that where the state and city both define the same conduct as a criminal offense, the “city cannot impose a greater sentence than that provided by state law . . . .” Id. at 530. In the immediate case, the city ordinance does not impose a greater sentence for violating the city nuisance ordinance than is imposed for a violation of the state nuisance statute. Allgood is inapplicable to the immediate case.

The second case Davis cites to is Richfield City v. Walker, 790 P.2d 87 (Utah App. 1990). Again, this case does not suggest the City nuisance ordinance is

in conflict with state law. In Richfield City, the Court of Appeals reviewed a case where the defendant was prosecuted for a DUI. The facts in Richfield City are that the defendant was found in actual physical control of his vehicle in the parking lot of a hotel with a blood alcohol level of .21 percent. The issue on appeal was to the language of the city ordinance Walker was prosecuted under. When originally adopted, the city ordinance was identical to the controlling state statute. However, subsequent to the city's enactment, the Utah Legislature amended the controlling, state DUI, statute. Richfield City did not correspondingly amend its ordinance. Consequently, at the time Walker was prosecuted under the city ordinance, it was not identical to the controlling state statute. Nevertheless, the court held that the city "ordinance need not be identical to the controlling state statute to be consistent with it" and upheld Walker's conviction. Id. at 90. Although this case is more likely to support the prosecution's position in the immediate case, it is largely inapplicable. Richfield City presents a situation where a controlling state statute is compared to a subordinate city ordinance. There is no controlling state statute in the immediate case. U.C.A. § 10-8-60 specifically provides that cities "may declare what shall be a nuisance." City's have never been given the authority to define what shall be a DUI.

The next two cases cited by Mr. Davis are not criminal cases but rather civil. Cannon v. Neuberger, 268 P.2d 425 (Utah 1954) is a case where the plaintiff brought a nuisance law suit against his neighbor seeking an order of the court requiring the defendant to top and trim three Carolina Poplar trees and two

Siberian Elm trees. Dahl v. Utah Oil Refining, 262 P. 269 (Utah 1927) is a case where the plaintiff brought a nuisance law suit seeking damages to his home on account of the gases, odors and fumes that drifted from the oil refinery onto plaintiff's property and rendered it uncomfortable and undesirable for residence purposes. In the former case, the court upheld the finding of nuisance; in the later, the court ordered a new trial. *The undersigned fails to see the relevance of these cases to the allegation that the Hyde Park City ordinance is in conflict with state law.* The next cases cited by defendants are similar and go to factual issues rather than legal. They are not relevant to Davis' appeal. They do not provide any guidance as to whether the city ordinance is in conflict with state law.

Based on clear statutory authority, Hyde Park has the right to define what a nuisance is even if its definition is dissimilar to the state definition of nuisance. Mr. Davis' appeal, as based on conflict with state law, should be rejected.

#### **IV. THE CITY NUISANCE ORDINANCE IS NOT UNCONSTITUTIONALLY VAGUE. THE ORDINANCE ADEQUATELY DEFINES NUISANCE.**

Mr. Davis set forth numerous maximums in his memorandum similar to the following: "It is a basic principle of due process that an enactment is void for vagueness if its prohibition is not clearly defined." (See Appellant's Brief p. 23. ¶43.) The city agrees with these various statements. However, the city disagrees with the allegation that the city nuisance ordinance is vague. The ordinance clearly defines what is prohibited.



It appears that the only case cited by Davis suggesting that the city nuisance ordinance is void for vagueness is Jones v. Logan City, 428 P.2d 160; 19 Utah 2d 169 (Utah 1967). More so than the Davis' cases referred to above, this case is completely off point. The facts in Jones are as follows: Logan City created a Board of Condemnation. The Board was given authority from the City Commission (City Council) to determine whether any building or structure constituted a menace to public health or public safety. The City Commission did not, in any manner, define what might be "a menace to public health or public safety." Without any standards upon which the Board could base its findings, the Board was left to use its complete subjective discretion to decide what constituted "a menace to public health or public safety." The Board determined that Jones' house was a nuisance and ordered it to be demolished. On appeal the Utah Supreme Court invalidated the city ordinance—not because it was unconstitutionally vague, but rather because it constituted an unconstitutional delegation of power from the City Commission to the Board of Condemnation. The court held, "[w]e are of the opinion that the ordinance attempts to make an unlawful delegation of power to the City's Board of Condemnation. We are of the opinion that by reason of the delegation of powers by the City Commission the ordinance above referred to is invalid." Id. at 171.

The city nuisance ordinance is not vague on its face. The ordinance has specific language defining what constitutes a nuisance and Jones v. Logan City is completely inapplicable.

**V. APPELLANT’S ARGUMENT AS TO PENALTY IS INACCURATE.**

Mr. Davis’ argument is that “the city cannot impose a greater sentence than that provided by state law.” (See Appellant’s Brief at p. 28, ¶56.) The city’s response is simple. despite Appellant’s insinuation, the city ordinance does not allow for a sentence greater than allowed by state law or provided by the state nuisance statutes. Davis’ memorandum includes a discussion about the sentence available under city ordinances but completely fails to mention the available sentence under comparable state law or the state’s specific grant of sentencing authority to cities.

**VI. MR. DAVIS HAS FAILED TO OVERCOME THE PRESUMPTION FAVORING THE CONSTITUTIONALITY OF THE JUSTICE COURT SYSTEM.**

Mr. Davis’ brief contains a lengthy discussion about justice courts, the essence of which is a general allegation that justice is not found in the Justice Court system. Davis first argues that the Justice Court structure violates the separation of powers of the Utah Constitution. (See Appellant’s Brief p. 40, ¶60). Davis further alleges that Justice Courts are not capable of rendering independent decisions because they are controlled by the municipal corporations that will only retain them so long as the fines they impose are financially remunerative to the cities. (See Appellant’s Brief p 33, ¶66). In making both arguments, Davis has provided no evidentiary support in favor of his conclusions and therefore cannot overcome the presumption of constitutionality.

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